
 
 

PLANNING, REGULATORY AND 
LICENSING 

 
5.00 PM WEDNESDAY, 10TH NOVEMBER, 2021 

(FOR THE CONVENIENCE OF THE MEMBERS THE 
START TIME HAS BEEN CHANGED FROM 4.00 PM TO 

5.00 PM) 
 

REMOTE MEETING - MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 

 
Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded. 

 
This recording will not be broadcast on the Authority’s internet as it will only be used for 

training purposes by the Democratic Services Department. 
 

The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering the Chamber and using 
the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public are consenting to being filmed and to the 

possible use of those images and sound recordings as outlined above. 

 

 
This Agenda has been prepared by the  

Democratic Services Department. Any member of the public requiring information should 
contact the department on (01685 725284) or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 

 
Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be found 

on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

Planning Applications  -  Recommendations under the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and the Planning and Compensation Act 
1991 

3. P/21/0322 - 6 Bishops Grove, Penydarren, 
Merthyr Tydfil, CF47 9LJ  

 

 To consider report of the Chief Executive 
 

5 - 12 

Information Reports 

4. Appeal Decision P/21/0031   

 To receive report of the Chief Executive 
 

13 - 16 

5. Appeal Decision P/21/0106   

 To receive report of the Chief Executive 
 

17 - 22 

6. Delegated Decision Report   

 To receive report of the Chief Executive 
 

23 - 34 

7. Any Other Business Deemed Urgent by the Chair   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

COMPOSITION: Councillors  (none)  
                    C Tovey (Vice-Chair) 

  
 Councillors:  D Chaplin, M Colbran, E Galsworthy, 

K Gibbs, C T Jones, G Lewis, D Sammon, J Thomas 
and S Thomas 
 

 together with appropriate officers 
  

 
If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 

democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

 
 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
            

 
 
 

DATE WRITTEN 28th October 2021 

REPORT AUTHOR Judith Jones 

CASE OFFICER Caroline Pulley 

COMMITTEE Planning and Regulatory 

COMMITTEE DATE 10th November 2021 
 
 

Application No. Date Determining Authority 
P/21/0322 15th September 2021 MTCBC 
   
Proposed Development Location Name & Address of 

Applicant/Agent 
   
Two storey side extension 6 Bishops Grove 

Penydarren 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 9LJ 

Mrs Beth Jones  
c/o Mr Paul Thomas 
Utopia Design 
5 Amberton Place 
Penydarren 
Merthyr Tydfil    

 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



This application is being reported to Committee because the applicant is an officer of the 
Council who provides consultee responses to planning applications. 
 
APPLICATION SITE 
 
The application site relates to a two-storey, semi-detached dwelling located within the 
residential area of Penydarren.  The property forms part of a street scene with other similar 
semi-detached properties, some of which have been extended to the side and rear.  Its 
front elevation is orientated to face a north-easterly direction onto the street.  To the side of 
the property and alongside the western boundary is a driveway providing off-road parking 
for two vehicles.  Adjacent to this driveway, there is a small triangular grassed area that 
straddles across the boundary with 7 Bishops Grove.  To the rear there is a single storey 
extension and a small enclosed garden area.   
 
The property is bound by neighbouring properties on both sides and the rear gardens of 
other dwellings to the rear.  The topography of the area means that the garden levels 
between the houses vary.  Notably, the application property is at a higher level to number 7 
Bishops Grove to the west.  There is also a step in floor level between the application 
property and the adjoining semi-detached dwelling to the east, number 5 Bishops Grove.  It 
should also be noted that the application property is at a higher level than the neighbouring 
gardens to the rear.   
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
This application seeks full planning permission to construct a two-storey extension to the 
western side elevation of the property.  The proposed extension would be set back 0.86m 
from the front elevation and 1.2m from the main rear elevation of the existing house.  It 
would measure 3m wide at the front and 2.5m wide at the rear.   It would be 6m long with a 
pitched roof with a maximum height of 7.2m.  The ground floor of the extension would 
provide a garage featuring a pedestrian access door to the rear.  The first floor would 
accommodate an en-suite bathroom (served by a window to the rear) and an additional 
bedroom (which would be served by a front window and two skylight windows in the front 
roof plane).  The roof and wall finishes of the extension would match those of the existing 
dwelling. 
 
The application has been submitted following the refusal of planning permission for a first 
floor rear extension (application reference P/21/0130). Members will recall this was refused 
at the Planning Committee on 7th July 2021 for the following reasons: 
 

1. ‘The proposed development by virtue of its design, siting, mass and height would 
result in a harmful overlooking and overbearing impact upon the property to the west 
known as 7 Bishops Grove. This is contrary to Policy SW11 of the Merthyr Tydfil 
County Borough Council Replacement Local Development Plan. 

2. The proposed extension by virtue of its siting and design would result in a harmful 
overlooking impact to the property to the south known as 3 Bishops Grove.  This is 
contrary to Policy SW11 of the Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council Replacement 
Local Development Plan.’ 

 

Page 6



PLANNING HISTORY 
 
The relevant planning history is detailed below: 
 
P/21/0130   First floor rear extension 
   Refused – 08.07.2021 
 
P/08/0103   Erection of single storey rear extension  
   Certificate of Lawful Development  

Approved 07.03.2008  
 
 
CONSULTATION 
 
None undertaken with this type of application.   
 
PUBLICITY 
 
In accordance with the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) 
(Wales) Order 2012, letters were sent to the adjoining properties. 
 
As a result of this publicity exercise, one letter of objection has been received from the 
resident of 7 Bishops Grove (to the west) raising the following concerns/comments: 
 

 The proposed two-storey extension and any extension from either property would be 
an intrusion on the other; 

 The two-storey development would exacerbate the close relationship between the 
application site and 7 Bishops Grove; 

 Concern as to how the two-storey extension could be constructed in accordance with 
health and safety regulations within the boundary of the application site without 
causing disturbance, disruption and damage to the neighbour’s property and 
landscape.  It is noted that due to the angle and close proximity of the properties, 
the rear outer corner of the proposed extension is virtually on the boundary line 
leaving no room for access for building requirements within the property; 

 The extension would exacerbate the level of overshadowing experienced by 7 
Bishops Grove; 

 The addition of a window to the rear would result in overlooking and a loss of privacy 
to 7 Bishops Grove. 

 
POLICY CONTEXT 
 
National Policy 
 
The Future Wales – the National Plan 2040 sets out a strategy for addressing key national 
priorities through the planning system, including sustaining and developing a vibrant 
economy, achieving decarbonisation and climate-resilience, developing strong ecosystems 
and improving the health and well-being of our communities.   
 
Planning Policy Wales (PPW) Edition 11 (February 2021) sets out the land use policies of 
the Welsh Government. The most relevant sections are: 

Page 7



 
Paragraphs 3.3 – 3.16 sets out the principles of good design in new development 
proposals, which should take into account its relationship to its surrounding context.   
 
Paragraph 3.9 refers to character and states that ‘…the special characteristics of an area 
should be central to the design of a development. The layout, form, scale and visual 
appearance of a proposed development and its relationship to its surroundings are 
important planning considerations. A clear rationale behind the design decisions made, 
based on site and context analysis, a strong vision, performance requirements and design 
principles, should be sought throughout the development process and expressed, when 
appropriate, in a design and access statement…’ 
 
Paragraph 3.14 refers to context appraisal and states that these ‘…should be used to 
determine the appropriateness of a development proposal in responding to its 
surroundings. This process will ensure that a development is well integrated into the fabric 
of the existing built environment…’  
 
The policies in PPW are supported by Technical Advice Notes (TANs). The most relevant 
TAN to this application is as follows:- 
 
TAN 12 - Design advises that the Assembly Government is strongly committed to achieving 
the delivery of good design in the built and natural environment, which is fit for purpose and 
delivers environmental sustainability, economic development, and social inclusion at every 
scale throughout Wales. 
 
Paragraph 4.16 and 4.17 state that ‘…achieving good design is the responsibility of all 
those involved in the design process…who should consider how each aspect of the design 
process meets the objectives of good design and responds to local context…’ 
 
Local Policy 
 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council Replacement Local Development Plan (LDP) 2016-
2031: 
 
Policy SW4: Settlement Boundaries; 
Policy SW11: Sustainable Design and Placemaking; 
 
Policy SW11 is the main primary consideration and points 1 to 3 are particularly relevant 
and state that new development should ‘…be appropriate to its local context in terms of 
scale, height, massing, elevational treatment, materials and detailing, layout, form, mix and 
density; integrate effectively with adjacent spaces, the public realm and historic 
environment to enhance the general street scene and create good quality townscape; and, 
not result in an unacceptable impact on local amenity, loss of light or privacy, or visual 
impact, and incorporate a good standard of landscape design…’ 
 
- Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG’s) 
 
SPG 6 – Householder Design 
 

Page 8



It is noted in the SPG that ‘…any extension or alteration to your property should be 
sympathetic to its surroundings in terms of its scale, siting and appearance, to ensure it 
complements neighbouring properties and the wider street scene…’  
 
 ‘...the size, shape and siting of an extension to your house must be of an appropriate 
height and form that is in keeping and subservient to the existing building and its setting…’  
 
In the case of two-storey side extensions, the SPG states that extensions should be of an 
appropriate width that it is proportional to the dwelling and should incorporate set backs 
from the front elevation with lowered ridgelines.  Additionally, it highlights that the 
appropriate width of a side extension will largely depend on the size of the house. 
 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
 
As highlighted earlier, planning permission (P/21/0130) was refused in July 2021 for the 
construction of a first floor extension to the rear of the dwelling.  The current application 
differs from the previous proposal in so far as it seeks planning permission for the 
construction of a two-storey side (rather than rear) extension.     
 
The key issues to consider under the assessment of this application relate to whether the 
proposed two-storey extension would amount to an acceptable form of development with 
regard to the impact of the development upon the residential amenities of those living 
nearby.  The impact of the extension on the character and appearance of the dwelling is 
also an important consideration.    
 
Impact on character and appearance of the existing property and the surrounding area 
 
The proposed side extension is considered to be of an acceptable scale and design.  While 
the proposal does represent a 58% increase to the two-storey frontage of the house, the 
extension would not be so large as to have a significant unbalancing impact on this semi-
detached dwelling.  The ridge height of the proposed extension is lower than the main roof 
of the semi-detached building and its front elevation has been set back from the principal 
elevation to ensure that it is of a subservient design.  The walls of the extension would also 
be finished in facing brick to match the existing property.  Furthermore, given that there are 
a variety of house types in the area, the proposed addition would not stand out as an overly 
prominent form of development in the street scene. As such, the proposed extension would 
not have an adverse impact on the character or appearance of the existing property or the 
surrounding area and thus accords with policy SW11 of the LDP.   
   
 
Residential amenity 
 
The proposed extension would result in two storey development closer to the dwelling 
located along the western boundary (known as 7 Bishops Grove - the objector’s property).  
As such, it is considered that the development would have the greatest impact on this 
property. While the concerns of the occupier/owner of this property are noted, the proposed 
extension would be constructed mainly alongside the driveway and side elevation of the 
neighbouring dwelling and as such, it would not have a significant overbearing or 
overshadowing impact.   
 

Page 9



While it is fully appreciated that the extension would be positioned hard along the line of the 
dividing boundary with 7 Bishops Grove, given the positioning and angle of this 
neighbouring property and its orientation in relation to the proposed extension, the impact in 
terms of overshadowing and dominance would be acceptable.  It is accepted that the 
extension would result in some loss of light to 7 Bishops Grove.  However, the level of 
overshadowing experienced as a result of the extension would be limited to the morning 
and would not be significantly harmful as to warrant the refusal of the application.  
Notwithstanding this, it is important to acknowledge that there is a small first floor window 
located in the side elevation of 7 Bishops Grove.  However, a review of the original planning 
history for Bishops Grove reveals that this window opening serves a landing area, which is 
a non-habitable room. In addition to this, given the angles of the two properties, their 
positioning in relation to one another and the siting of the proposed extension (being set 
back 1.2m from the main rear elevation of the application property) it is not anticipated that 
the extension would significantly affect the amount of light reaching this side facing window.    
  
Turning to the overlooking concerns raised by the neighbour, there are no windows in the 
side elevation of the proposed extension, however, it would have a first floor window in its 
rear elevation.  However, as this window would serve an en-suite bathroom, which is a non-
habitable room and can be conditioned to be permanently obscure glazed, it would not 
result in any substantial overlooking or loss of privacy to neighbouring properties.  
Moreover, the window has been set in from the common boundary with 7 Bishops Grove 
and this further helps to reduce any perceived level of overlooking to 7 Bishops Grove.  As 
such, no concerns are raised in terms of overlooking or loss of privacy. 
 
With regard to the other matter raised by the objector, it is not uncommon for extensions to 
be constructed directly on a shared boundary.  It is acknowledged that this can sometimes 
cause issues for construction and future maintenance.  However, this is not a reason to 
refuse planning permission.  Should the applicant require access to a neighbour’s property 
to carry out the works or maintain the extension in the future, they would need to obtain the 
necessary permission from the landowner.  This is a private matter. The granting of 
planning permission does not override the rights of the landowner or remove the need to 
obtain any other consent that may be necessary, nor does it imply that such consents will 
be forthcoming.  Notwithstanding this, should Committee be minded to approve the 
application, the issue could be brought to the applicant’s attention by adding an appropriate 
informative note to the decision.  It should also be noted that the applicant would need to 
obtain Building Regulations approval for the development, which would cover the structural 
aspect and safety of the build.   
 
Highway Safety and Parking 
 
In respect of the impact of the scheme on parking provision, it is noted that a proportion of 
the existing driveway would be used to accommodate the proposed extension.  Whilst 
acknowledging this and the fact that the scheme would provide an extra bedroom, two off 
road parking spaces would be retained and additional unrestricted on-street parking is 
available along the road outside the property.  Given this, the proposal would not have  a 
detrimental impact on parking provision or highway safety.    
 

Page 10



Conclusion  
 

The proposal would not have a significant impact on the character and 
appearance of the locality or the residential amenity of the surrounding 
neighbouring properties. As such, the proposal would comply with the relevant 
policy of the Local Development Plan (Policy SW11).  
 
The duty to improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales, 
in accordance with the sustainable development principle, under section 3 of the Well-Being 
of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (“the WBFG Act”) has been taken into 
consideration when determining this application. In reaching the following recommendation, 
the ways of working set out at section 5 of the WBFG Act have been considered and thus 
the proposal is in accordance with the sustainable development principle through its 
contribution towards one or more of the Welsh Ministers well-being objectives set out as 
required by section 8 of the WBFG Act. 
 
Accordingly the following recommendation is made: 
 
RECOMMENDATION: BE APPROVED subject to the following CONDITIONS 
 

 
 1. The development shall begin not later than five years from the date of this decision. 
  
 Reason - To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
 2. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved 

plans and documents:  
  
 Bishops Grove 6 05 received on 15.09.2021 
 Bishops Grove 6 06 received on 15.09.2021 
  
 Reason -To ensure compliance with the approved plans and clearly define the 

scope of the permission. 
 
 3. Before the development hereby permitted is brought into use, the first floor en-suite 

window located in the south facing rear elevation of the extension shall be fitted with 
obscure glazing to level 3 or higher on the Pilkington scale of privacy or equivalent 
and any part of the window[s] that is less than 1.7m above the floor of the room in 
which it is installed shall be non-opening. The windows shall be permanently 
retained in that condition thereafter. 

  
 Reason - In the interest of residential amenity and to accord with Policy SW11 of the 

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council Replacement  Local Development Plan 
 
 4. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended in Wales)(or any Order revoking 
and re-enacting that Order) no windows or roof lights (other than any hereby 
permitted) shall be installed above ground floor ceiling height in the rear south facing 
elevation of the extension hereby approved.   

  

Page 11



 Reason - In the interest of residential amenity and to accord with Policy SW11 of the 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council Replacement  Local Development Plan 

 
 
INFORMATIVES  
 
 1. This planning permission does not provide consent to undertake works that require a 

European Protected Species (EPS) licence. 
 All bats and their roosts are protected under UK and European legislation. It is an 

offence to deliberately kill, injure, capture or disturb a bat or to recklessly damage or 
destroy their breeding sites or resting places. 

  
 If works are planned on a building/tree in which bats are found to be roosting, 

Natural Resources Wales (NRW) must be contacted.  on 0300 065 3000 or at 
https://naturalresources.wales/permits-and-permissions/species-licensing/apply-for-
a-protected-species-licence/bat-licences/?lang=en. 

  
 If work has already commenced and bats are found, or if any evidence that bats are 

using the site as a roost is found, work should cease and NRW should be contacted 
immediately. 

  
 Under these circumstances, an EPS licence is likely to be required to undertake the 

works within the law.  
  
 2. The Developer is advised to check and confirm the positions of all boundaries 

BEFORE construction works commence. 
  
 Any discrepancies or problems of interpretation of boundary lines shall be resolved 

amongst all interested parties BEFORE works commence. 
  
 Failure to comply with this information could lead to civil action being brought against 

the developer by aggrieved parties.  
 
 3. The developer is advised to seek appropriate legal advice if the development to 

which this application refers involves either:- 
  
  i) work on an existing wall shared with another property; 
  ii) new building on the boundary with a neighbouring property; 
  or 
  iii) excavating near a neighbouring building. 
  
 as these works may fall within the scope of the Party Wall Act 1996 and may require 

statutory notices to be served on affected owners. 
 
 
 

Page 12



 
            

FOR INFORMATION – APPEAL DECISION 
 

DATE WRITTEN 26th October 2021 

REPORT AUTHOR Judith Jones 

CASE OFFICER Caroline Pulley 

COMMITTEE Planning and Regulatory 

COMMITTEE DATE 10th November 2021 
 

Application No. Date Determining Authority 
P/21/0031 01.02.2021 MTCBC 
   

Proposed Development Location Name & Address of 
Applicant/Agent 

   

Rear extensions to ground 
and first floors above existing 
lower ground floor annexe 

23 Hanover Street 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 8SW 

Mr K J Lloyd 
49 Coed Y Pia 
Llanbradach 
Caerphilly 
CF83 3PT 

 

 

 
TYPE OF APPPEAL:   AGAINST REFUSAL   
APPEAL REFERENCE NO.:  APP/U6925/D/21/3278544 
DATE DECISION RECEIVED:  19.08.2021 
DECISION:    DISMISSED 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



 

Page 14



 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 
            

FOR INFORMATION – APPEAL DECISION 
 

DATE WRITTEN 26th October 2021 

REPORT AUTHOR Judith Jones 

CASE OFFICER Caroline Pulley 

COMMITTEE Planning and Regulatory 

COMMITTEE DATE 10th November 2021 
 

Application No. Date Determining Authority 
P/21/0106 29.03.2021 MTCBC 
   

Proposed Development Location Name & Address of 
Applicant/Agent 

   

Detached dwelling Land Former Windsor 
Cottages, adjacen to 
Aberfan Social 
Democratic Club 
Angus Street 
Aberfan 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 

Mr R Stuckey 
Stuckey Architects 
14 The Glade 
Plasdraw 
Aberdare 
CF44 0NX 

 

 

 
TYPE OF APPPEAL:   AGAINST REFUSAL   
APPEAL REFERENCE NO.:  APP/U6925/A/21/3277092 
DATE DECISION RECEIVED:  11.10.2021 
DECISION:    ALLOWED 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



 

Page 18



 

Page 19



 

Page 20



 

Page 21



 

Page 22



FOR INFORMATION 

 

 

DELEGATED DECISION REPORT LIST:  1st June 2021 – 31st August 2021 

 

App No Site Proposal Decision Date of 
Decision 

P/20/0186 2 Taff Fawr Close 
Cefn Coed 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 2RF 
 

Erection of new fence Refusal 15/07/2021 

P/20/0217 The Wern Field 
Penlan View 
Ynysfach 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 

Retention of new clubhouse/community 
hub, erection of 8 new floodlights, new 
vehicle access, retaining walls and car 
parking.  Increase to curtilage 

Full Approval 21/06/2021 

P/20/0243 Land adjacent to 
Sunnybank 
Mount Pleasant 
Heolgerrig 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 

Construct a detached dwelling and a 
detached garage 

Refusal 03/06/2021 

P/20/0304 9 Queens Terrace  
Carlton Terrace 
Troedyrhiw 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 4ER 
 

Conversion of house to two self-
contained flats 

Full Approval 01/06/2021 

P/21/0009 7 Model Cottages  
Baden Terrace 
Penyard 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 0HS 
 

Erection of garage Full Approval 01/06/2021 

P/21/0010 47 Salisbury Close 
Heolgerrig 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 1SD 
 

Rear single storey extension and side 
extension with front and rear dormers 

Full Approval 22/07/2021 

  

DATE WRITTEN 25th October, 2021 

REPORT AUTHOR Judith Jones 

CASE OFFICER Various 

COMMITTEE Planning and Regulatory 

COMMITTEE DATE 10th November 2021 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



App No Site Proposal Decision Date of 
Decision 

P/21/0024 Maes Y Coed 
29 The Hawthorns 
Pant 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 2EJ 
 

First floor side extension and two storey 
rear extension 

Full Approval 01/06/2021 

P/21/0031 Lyndhurst  
23 Hanover Street 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 8SW 
 

Rear extensions to ground and first 
floors above existing lower ground floor 
annexe 

Refusal 01/07/2021 

P/21/0043 30 Maple Crescent 
Trefechan 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 2EH 
 

Rear two storey extension.  Erect shed in 
the rear garden 

Full Approval 24/06/2021 

P/21/0068 Guest Memorial 
Bowls Club 
Garden Street 
Dowlais 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 

Erect 3 canopies to the front, side and 
rear elevations 

Full Approval 22/06/2021 

P/21/0094 Land at 
Honeysuckle Close 
Gurnos 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 

Proposed erection of 2 No. passivhaus 
dwellings and associated works 

Full Approval 02/06/2021 

P/21/0095 Land at 
Honeysuckle Close 
- South Site 
Gurnos 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 

Proposed erection of 4 No. passivhaus 
dwellings, laundry room, cycle store and 
associated works 

Temporary 
Approval 

02/06/2021 

P/21/0121 Antelope Hotel  
83 High Street 
Caeharris 
Dowlais 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 3HB 
 

Erect canopy to the rear Full Approval 07/06/2021 

P/21/0124 Woodstock  
Somerset Lane 
Cefn Coed 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 2PA 
 

Attic conversion comprising of an 
increase in roof ridge height and change 
from hipped roof to gable roof with 
dormers to front, rear and side 

Refusal 01/06/2021 

  

Page 24



App No Site Proposal Decision Date of 
Decision 

P/21/0128 Cyfarthfa Park 
Primary Infant 
School  
Norman Terrace 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 8SD 
 

Alteration of existing covered play area 
to provide a classroom 

Full Approval 10/06/2021 

P/21/0131 Morlais Medical 
Centre  
Berry Square 
Dowlais 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 3AL 
 

Lay concrete slab for the siting of a 
prescription dispensing unit to the side 
of Pearn's Pharmacy 

Refusal 03/06/2021 

P/21/0132 Morlais Medical 
Centre 
Berry Square 
Dowlais 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 3AL 
 

Advertisement consent for signage on 
prescription dispensing unit to the side 
of Pearn's Pharmacy 

Refusal 
(Advertisement) 

03/06/2021 

P/21/0133 Ty-Newydd  
Pleasant View 
Bedlinog 
Treharris 
CF46 6SF 
 

Construct side extension to provide 
larger garage with first floor dormer 
accommodation above.  New roof to 
replace flat roof on existing single storey 
extension. 

Full Approval 01/07/2021 

P/21/0141 Land opposite 
Valley View 
Mountain Hare 
Penheolferthyr 
Twynyrodyn 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 

Removal of condition 5 of planning 
permission P/18/0101 relating to 
surface water drainage for a detached 
dwelling 

Full Approval 10/06/2021 

P/21/0142 Pengarnddu 
Service Reservoir 
Pengarnddu  
Dowlais 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 

Construction of a temporary haul road 
to facilitate construction of a new 
service reservoir 

Full Approval 28/06/2021 

P/21/0145 Glyn Bargoed 
House 
Glynbargoed Road 
Trelewis 
Treharris 
CF46 6AA 
 

Construct lobby extension to side 
elevation 

Full Approval 04/06/2021 

  

Page 25



App No Site Proposal Decision Date of 
Decision 

P/21/0149 1 Walter's View  
Walter Street 
Dowlais 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 3AW 
 

Change of use from tanning salon (sui 
generis)  to flat (C3 use class) 

Full Approval 14/06/2021 

P/21/0150 7 Heol Parc Maen 
Gellideg 
Swansea Road 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 1LF 
 

Erection of rear single storey extension, 
front porch and steps, and new roof 
canopy, wall and fence to side elevation 

Full Approval 08/06/2021 

P/21/0151 17 Dane Street 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 8SF 
 

Two storey rear extension Full Approval 10/06/2021 

P/21/0155 51 Bridge Street 
Troedyrhiw 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 4DX 
 

Insertion of new access door into rear 
elevation 

Full Approval 03/06/2021 

P/21/0157 Pengarnddu 
Service Reservoir 
Pengarnddu 
Industrial Estate 
Dowlais 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 2TA 
 

Variation of condition 2 of planning 
permission P/20/0228 to refer to an 
updated contract management plan 

Removal or 
Variation of 
Condition - App 

28/06/2021 

P/21/0160 Winfield  
10 School Road 
Troedyrhiw 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 4JS 
 

Replace existing roof coverings including 
eaves and rainwater goods 

Full Approval 01/06/2021 

P/21/0161 Unit 4 
The Arches 
Clare Street 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 

Change of use from kitchen supplier to 
personal training fitness studio 

Full Approval 06/07/2021 

P/21/0162 10 Model Cottages  
Baden Terrace 
Penyard 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 0HS 
 

Erection of rear single storey extension 
to provide wet room 

Full Approval 14/06/2021 

  

Page 26



App No Site Proposal Decision Date of 
Decision 

P/21/0164 Plot 2 
Pengarnddu 
Industrial Estate 
Dowlais 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 2TA 
 

Replace 52 diesel generators with low 
carbon battery storage technology 

Full Approval 29/06/2021 

P/21/0165 25 Urban Street 
Penydarren 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 9PJ 
 

Erection of single storey side and rear 
extensions 

Full Approval 24/06/2021 

P/21/0166 Former Vaynor & 
Penderyn Site  
Pontycapel Road 
Cefn Coed 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 2RP 
 

Provision of underground water storage 
tank and Learning Resource Base 
garden.  Erection of 3m high fence to 
multi use games area, sections of anti 
climb fencing and sun shade sail 

Full Approval 04/06/2021 

P/21/0171 St Mary's RC 
Church 
The Priory 
Pontmorlais West 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 

Reduce height of 6 pine trees by 20% 
and thin their canopies by 20%.  Reduce 
the canopy of the small leaved lime by 
25% 

Tree Works 
Approval 

23/06/2021 

P/21/0175 Unit 13 
Cyfarthfa Retail 
Park 
Swansea Road 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 1HY 
 

Erection of 3 fascia signs and 2 internal 
digital screens 

Advertisement 
Approval 

07/07/2021 

P/21/0176 Unit 13 
Cyfarthfa Retail 
Park 
Swansea Road 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 1HY 
 

Provision of designated outdoor seating 
area and the installation of 2 air 
conditioning units, 1 coldroom 
condenser unit, a ventilation grill and 
bin store area 

Full Approval 08/07/2021 

P/21/0177 10 Gelligaer Road 
Trelewis 
Treharris 
CF46 6DN 
 

Single storey side and rear extension.  
Widen front vehicular access 

Full Approval 01/07/2021 

  

Page 27



App No Site Proposal Decision Date of 
Decision 

P/21/0179 Parcel of land 
within ICI Sports 
Field And Pavilion 
Bryniau Road 
Pant 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 2SR 
 

Siting of a burger van Full Approval 21/06/2021 

P/21/0180 20A Winchfawr 
Heolgerrig 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 1RD 
 

First floor rear extension with 
alterations 

Full Approval 21/06/2021 

P/21/0181 2 Glynmil Close 
Incline Top 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 0GE 
 

Erection of first floor, rear extension Full Approval 30/06/2021 

P/21/0183 59 The Oaks 
Quakers Yard 
Treharris 
CF46 5HQ 

Variation of condition 2 of P/20/0251 to 
replace privacy screen with 1.1 m high 
screen/balustrade and removal of 
condition 4 which relates to the privacy 
screen to be replaced 
 

Removal or 
Variation of 
Condition - App 

21/06/2021 

P/21/0184 27 Wallhead Road 
Twynyrodyn 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 0SS 
 

Single storey extension to side and rear Full Approval 17/06/2021 

P/21/0185 8 Russell Street 
Dowlais 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 3BG 
 

Non material amendment to planning 
permission P/21/0025 to reduce the size 
of the approved extension 

Non Material 
Amendment - 
Approved 

23/06/2021 

P/21/0186 2 Gwaelodygarth 
Close 
Gurnos 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 8DX 
 

Single storey rear extension Full Approval 01/07/2021 

P/21/0188 Cambrian House, 
Unit 2 
Merthyr Tydfil 
Industrial Park 
Pentrebach 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 4DR 
 

Change of Use to B1, B2 or B8 to include 
external alterations 

Full Approval 08/07/2021 

  

Page 28



App No Site Proposal Decision Date of 
Decision 

P/21/0189 51 Bridge Street 
Troedyrhiw 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 4DX 
 

Install new shop front Full Approval 04/08/2021 

P/21/0191 65 Beacon Heights 
Swansea Road 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 1NL 
 

Erection of hipped-roof, rear 
conservatory and erection of railings to 
front path 

Full Approval 02/07/2021 

P/21/0196 Land adjacent to 
54 Cedar Way 
Gurnos 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 9PA 
 

Erection of garage Full Approval 04/08/2021 

P/21/0197 Ty Can Y Gwynt  
63 The Hawthorns 
Pant 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 2EJ 
 

Extension to existing conservatory Full Approval 15/07/2021 

P/21/0198 Land at Taff 
Bargoed 
Development 
Trust 
The Old Drift Mine 
Trelewis 
Treharris 
CF46 6RD 
 

Use of land for outdoor storage of skips 
for a temporary period of 12 months 

Refusal 21/07/2021 

P/21/0202 13 Aeron Terrace  
Penheolferthyr 
Twynyrodyn 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 0LN 
 

Construct garage to the rear of the 
property 

Full Approval 02/08/2021 

P/21/0204 13 Woodlands 
Avenue 
Treharris 
CF46 5AS 
 

Two storey rear extension Full Approval 22/07/2021 

P/21/0207 39 Glasier Road 
Twynyrodyn 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 0TD 
 

Two storey side extension Full Approval 19/07/2021 

  

Page 29



App No Site Proposal Decision Date of 
Decision 

P/21/0214 Currys Unit 7  
Cyfarthfa Retail 
Park 
Swansea Road 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 1HY 
 

Erection of 22 No. illuminated and non-
illuminated fascia and totem signs 

Advertisement 
Approval 

22/06/2021 

P/21/0222 Ty Mefus  
Pentwyn Road 
Treharris 
CF46 5BS 
 

Non material amendment to planning 
permission P/10/0147 to reposition a 
side door and inclusion of window in 
rear elevation 

Non Material 
Amendment - 
Approved 

05/07/2021 

P/21/0223 Asherton  
9 The Grove 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 8YR 
 

First floor side extension Full Approval 17/08/2021 

P/21/0226 Gellideg 
Foundation Action 
Centre Shop  
23 Heol Tai Mawr 
Gellideg 
Swansea Road 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 1ND 
 

Change of use from cafe to beauty 
parlour and associated external 
alterations 

Full Approval 27/07/2021 

P/21/0228 Tir Cook Farm 
Bungalow 
Twynygarreg 
Treharris 
CF46 5RN 
 

Extend and raise roof of garage to 
accommodate first floor gymnasium 
ancillary to the use of Tir Cook Farm 
Bungalow 

Refusal 12/08/2021 

P/21/0229 Westwood  
Jobs Lane 
Cefn Coed 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 2NH 
 

Construct two storey side extension Full Approval 11/08/2021 

P/21/0230 Fairhurst 
Queens Road 
Twynyrodyn 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 0LU 
 

Erection of single storey side and rear 
extension 

Full Approval 10/08/2021 

P/21/0231 2 Laburnum 
Cottages 
Dan-y-deri Lane 
Cefn Coed 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 2LS 
 

Erection of single storey rear extension Full Approval 06/08/2021 

Page 30



App No Site Proposal Decision Date of 
Decision 

P/21/0232 107 and 108 
Haydn Terrace 
Penydarren 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 

Refurbishment of flats, including the 
installation of external render and new 
windows 

Full Approval 12/08/2021 

P/21/0233 26 Webster Street 
Treharris 
CF46 5HP 
 

Two storey rear extension and 
associated retaining works 

Full Approval 10/08/2021 

P/21/0235 5 Taff Glen View 
Twynyrodyn 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 0TH 
 

Erect two storey side extension Full Approval 16/08/2021 

P/21/0236 The Nest 
5 Fir Tree View 
Gwaelodygarth 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 8LJ 
 

Construct new wall and access gates 
with parking area at the rear of the 
property 

Full Approval 20/08/2021 

P/21/0240 Land Opposite 
62/64 Oak Road 
Gurnos 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 

Construction of communal parking bay 
(for use of existing residents) 

Full Approval 16/08/2021 

P/21/0241 Land adjacent to 
29 & 30 Aberfan 
Fawr 
Aberfan 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 

Construction of communal parking bays 
for use of local residents 

Full Approval 12/08/2021 

P/21/0242 Land to the front 
of 2 & 4 
Blackthorn Avenue 
Poplar Way 
Gurnos 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 

Construction of communal off-road 
parking bays for use by local residents 

Full Approval 16/08/2021 

P/21/0246 West Winds  
9 Gwaunfarren 
Close 
Penydarren 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 9AX 
 

Erection of single storey side extension, 
raised rear patio area, retaining wall and 
boundary fencing 

Full Approval 12/08/2021 

P/21/0248 Corner Ways  
Clare Street 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 0YN 
 

New boundry enclosure and pagoda Full Approval 23/08/2021 

Page 31



App No Site Proposal Decision Date of 
Decision 

P/21/0253 Project Riverside 
(Lovell Residential 
Development Site) 
Merthyr Vale 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 

Addition of communal electric vehicle 
charging point 

Full Approval 17/08/2021 

P/21/0254 Ty Bethesda  
Riverside Court 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 8AS 
 

Installation of air conditioning 
condenser unit to northern elevations of 
building 

Full Approval 17/08/2021 

P/21/0255 41 Webster Street 
Treharris 
CF46 5HP 
 

Erection of single storey rear extension 
and associated external alterations 

Full Approval 20/08/2021 

P/21/0256 Bryntaf 
1 Glenview Villas 
Commercial 
Terrace 
Treharris 
CF46 5PT 
 

Conversion of a 5 bedroom house into a 
3 bedroom house and 2 one bedroom 
flats with associated works to building 

Full Approval 27/08/2021 

P/21/0257 21 The Hawthorns 
Pant 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 2EJ 
 

First floor side extension Full Approval 20/08/2021 

P/21/0269 Merthyr Tydfil 
Railway Station 
Brunel Way 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 0AG 
 

Erect wc cubicle Application 
Granted 

06/08/2021 

P/21/0270 14 Beechwood 
Drive 
Heolgerrig 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF48 1TH 
 

Proposed retaining wall and fence Full Approval 27/08/2021 

P/21/0282 Former Bus 
Station 
Castle Street 
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 8BB 
 

Demolition of bus station and removal 
of bus apron and hard standing areas 

Approval not 
Required 

17/08/2021 

  

Page 32



App No Site Proposal Decision Date of 
Decision 

P/21/0290 Land at Former 
Garage Site 
Glasier Road 
Twynyrodyn 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 
 

Non material amendment to planning 
permission P/20/0174 to amend 
condition 2 to allow minor changes to 
the location of the rain garden, to 
provide an access ramp and two secure 
cycle stores 

Non Material 
Amendment - 
Approved 

20/08/2021 

 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 P/21/0322 - 6 Bishops Grove, Penydarren, Merthyr Tydfil, CF47 9LJ
	4 Appeal Decision P/21/0031
	5 Appeal Decision P/21/0106
	6 Delegated Decision Report

